
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  

EASTERN DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE  

AT CHATTANOOGA  
l013JAN-2 P2:0Q 

DALLAS LONGWITH, ) 

Plaintiff ) 

v. ) 

) CASE NO. \: ���������\ 
THE BRADLEY COUNTY ) 

SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT, ) Jl)Ct1-eo \ \ i o-lCav-tcY 
BRADLEY COUNTY,TENNESSEE, ) 

and SHERIFF JAMES RUTH, ) 

Defendants ) 

COMPLAINT 

Comes now the plaintiff, by and through his attorneys, and for support of 

this complaint would show to the court as follows. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

1. The Plaintiff is a resident of Bradley County, Tennessee. All the acts 

complained of occurred in Bradley County, Tennessee, which is a part of the 

geographic area under the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for 

Eastern Tennessee. 

2. The Bradley County Sheriffs Department is located in Bradley County, 

Tennessee, and was created by the Tennessee Constitution and applicable state 

law. Bradley County is a political subdivision of the state of Tennessee. Sheriff 

James Ruth is the current Sheriff of Bradley County, Tennessee, having been 
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elected in August of 2010. He serves a four-year term. He is also a resident of 

Bradley County, Tennessee. 

3. Jurisdiction and venue are invoked pursuant to 28 USC sections 1331, 

1343(a)(3) and (4) and 42 USC section 1983 and 1988. 

FACTS 

4. Dallas Longwith was a Bradley County Sheriff's deputy who was assigned 

to Chancellor Jerri Bryant as a court officer in the calendar year 2011. Sheriff Ruth 

was elected in August of 201 0 after a contentious election with Steve Lawson who 

was a Captain in the Bradley County Sheriff's Department at the time of the 

election. After his election, Sheriff Ruth systematically demoted, cut pay and/or 

changed the shifts of Sheriff s deputies who had openly supported Lawson in the 

election. After his election defeat, Captain Lawson became the Director of the 10th 

Judicial District Drug Task Force leaving the Bradley County Sheriff Department. 

After the election, Captain Eric Watson of the Bradley County Sheriff's 

Department was given the choice of either being fired or resigning voluntarily. He 

chose to resign in the face of threats of termination. Captain Watson is a State 

Representative in the Tennessee House of Representatives. This is a position he 

still holds. Captain Watson supported Sheriff Ruth but the plaintiff would assert 

that he was effectively terminated to eliminate a potential political rival. 
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5. It is well known to both Sheriff Ruth and other people in Bradley County 

that Eric Watson may run against him in 2014 for the position of Sheriff. Dallas 

Longwith is a longtime friend of Eric Watson. It is well known in the Sheriff's 

Department and to Sheriff Ruth that they are personal friends. It is further well 

known to the defendants that should Watson run for Sheriff, Longwith would 

support him. The plaintiff has spoken to citizens of Bradley County in support of 

Watson's potential candidacy for Sheriff prior to his firing. Sheriff Ruth was aware 

of Watson's potential candidacy when he fired the Plaintiff. 

6. A convicted felon who lives near the Plaintiff made a false complaint to 

the Sheriffs Department that the Plaintiff was mowing grass in his underwear. At 

the time, Captain Watson was still his superior and told him about the complaint. 

The Plaintiff denied it, and Captain Watson advised him there was nothing to 

worry about as it was such a ridiculous allegation. In fact Mr. Longwith had been 

mowing his grass in a pair of regular shorts which are made of flannel cotion and 

have an orange and white plaid design. 

7. The same convicted felon who apparently does not like living near a 

police officer, allegedly made another complaint about Mr. Longwith mowing his 

grass in his underwear in December of 2011. Without questioning the patently 

absurd notion of someone mowing the grass wearing only boxer shorts in 

December, the Bradley County Sheriffs Department placed Dallas Longwith on 
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leave with pay and conducted some form of investigation. Among the questions 

that investigators asked the Plaintiff s neighbors was whether he answered the door 

naked and whether he would get his mail naked. Neighbors were also asked about 

whether he mowed grass in his underwear. After this investigation was complete, 

Sheriff Ruth terminated the plaintiff on January 4, 2012, for allegedly mowing 

grass in his underwear. The specific reason was conduct unbecoming an officer. 

Mr. Longwith never mowed his grass in his underwear or in inappropriate clothes. 

The Plaintiff asserts that this was a subterfuge to rid the Department of a potential 

Eric Watson supporter just as Sheriff Ruth had punished those who supported 

Lawson in the election. 

8. Dallas Longwith had served Bradley County for many years without any 

incident. Chancellor Bryant thinks he did a fine job as her court officer. There was 

no reason to terminate him other than to serve the political interest of Sheriff Ruth. 

9. Historically in Bradley County, those who support the losing candidate in 

a Sheriff's race and who work in the Sheriffs Department suffer demotion, a cut in 

payor termination. This is a historical pattern which extends backwards many 

years. The Plaintiff contends that it has become acceptable policy and procedure in 

that department to exact this political vengeance. The Plaintiff would assert that it 

is impossible for the political elected leadership of Bradley County to be unaware 

of this fact as these terminations and demotions have generated a great deal of 
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discussion in public, some press coverage and is been brought before the County 

Commission. The Plaintiff contends that the County Mayor and County 

Commissioners are well aware of this practice and approve of it by failing to bring 

it to an end. After Sheriff Ruth's first wave of political retaliation, the County 

Commission discussed in open meeting the necessity of enacted civil service rules 

to protect Sheriff's Department personnel from retaliation after elections. The 

Plaintiff asserts that this was in direct reaction to Sherriff Ruth's actions against 

Lawson supporters. Further, the Plaintiff asserts that this practice has become 

policy and procedure in Bradley County and is accepted by the elected political 

leadership of this County and the Sheriff's Department. The Plaintiff asserts that 

his termination is a direct result of his association with Eric Watson and his 

support of his potential run for Sheriff. Sheriff Ruth's terminated him for no good 

cause and the Bradley County Sheriff's Department and Bradley County 

Commission and Mayor effectively approve of this practice. 

CLAIM FOR VIOLATION OF PLAINTIFF'S CIVIL RIGHTS 

10. The Plaintiff alleges that this action violated his civil rights by violating 

his First Amendment right to free speech and free association. More specifically, 

the Defendants penalized the Plaintiff for his political association with Eric Watson 

and because Eric Watson is a threat to defeat James Ruth in the next election. This 

action is in violation of 42 USC § 1983. A citizen's First Amendment rights are 
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protected under the Civil Rights Act and that this has been recognized by the 

courts of the Sixth Circuit of the United States. 

11. As a direct result of the Defendants' actions in wrongfully tenninating 

him, the Plaintiff has suffered a loss of income, loss of medical insurance, loss of 

benefits, humiliation, emotional distress and a lowering of the standard of living. 

The Plaintiff has employed an expert witnessv who has estimated that this wrongful 

tennination has created an economic loss of which the present value is slightly 

under five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00). The Plaintiff has suffered a 

loss of income due to having to pay for medical care without insurance. The 

Plaintiff has gone without medical care due to a lack of insurance. The Plaintiff 

has lost his pension benefits. 

12. The Plaintiff has looked diligently for employment but been unable to 

maintain steady employment. Shortly after being tenninated the Plaintiff was 

advised he was going to be hired by Walden Security. He was fitted for unifonns 

and preparing to go to work when he was suddenly advised by Walden that they 

would not be hiring him. The Plaintiff believes this is a direct result of 

communication between the agents of the Bradley County Sheriff Department and 

Walden Security. The Plaintiff alleges that his status as a terminated deputy has 

hurt his ability to gain employment. 
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13. The Plaintiff has suffered extreme humiliation and emotional distress as 

a result of his termination. He was humiliated by the internal affairs investigators 

asking his neighbors if he answered the door in the nude. The fact that his 

employers accepted the word of someone with an ulterior motive to terminate him 

for something as ridiculous as mowing your grass in your underwear in the month 

of December has caused extreme emotional distress and humiliation to the Plaintiff 

and lowered his esteem in the community where he lives. The Plaintiff has been 

treated for Post-Traumatic Stress Disorder since his firing but lacks the resources 

to receive the counseling he needs to overcome this problem. This disorder is still 

afflicting the Plaintiff due to his inability to pay for counseling. 

14. The actions of Sheriff Ruth were intentional and intended to harm the 

Plaintiff. These actions were in accordance with the custom of this Department 

and effectively approved of by the County Commission and County Mayor. These 

elected officials cloaked themselves in the legitimacy of their offices and ignore 

this illegal action in violation of the Plaintiffs First Amendment rights to free 

speech and free association. 

15. The Plaintiff asks for compensatory damages in the amount of one 

million dollars ($1,000,000.00) and punitive damages in the amount of five 

hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00). Further, the Plaintiff asks that his 
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attorney's fees and costs of litigation also be paid by the Defendants as is provided 

for in the statute. 

Respectfully submitted, 

y: . Geral Tidwell, Jr., 

Attorney for Plaintiff Dallas Longwith 
817 Broad Street, Second Floor 
Chattanooga, � 37402 
Telephone: (423) 756-3646 
Facsimile: (423) 756-3647 
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